ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
July 13, 2016

1: 07 p. m
Wasilla LIO
MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senator John Coghill, Vice Chair (via teleconference)
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis (via tel econference)
Representative Cathy Tilton (via tel econference)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 5001

"An Act relating to the Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation, the
earnings of the Al aska permanent fund, and the earnings reserve
account; relating to nanagenent of the budget reserve fund (art.
| X, sec. 17, Constitution of the State of Al aska) by the Al aska
Permanent Fund Corporation; relating to procurement by the
Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation; relating to the nmental health
trust fund; relating to deposits into the dividend fund;
relating to the <calculation of permanent fund dividends;
relating to unrestricted state revenue avai l abl e for
appropriation; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: SB5001

SHORT TITLE: PERM FUND: DEPOSITS; DI VI DEND, EARNI NGS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

07/11/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
07/11/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- July 13, 2016



07/ 13/ 16 (S) STA AT 1: 00 PM WASI LLA LI O
W TNESS REG STER

EMVA POKON, Attorney |V

Speci al Assistant to the Attorney General

O fice of the Attorney General

Departnment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Via teleconference, introduced SB 5001 and
answered questions on behalf of the adm nistration.

WLLI AM M LKS, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Labor and State Affairs Section

Department of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION STATEMENT: Via tel econference, answered questions
related to SB 5001 on behalf of the adm nistration.

ANGELA RODELL, Executive Director and Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation (APFC)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Via tel econference, answered questions and
described how SB 5001 affects the Alaska Permanent Fund
Cor por ati on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 07: 33 PM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:07 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators W el echowski, Huggi ns, Coghi | | (via
tel econference), and Chair Stoltze.

SB 5001- PERM FUND: DEPOSI TS; DI VI DEND; EARNI NGS

1:07: 45 PM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 5001 and noted
t hat this is the governor's self-described cornerstone
| egislation. He relayed that he cleared the docket to hear this
bill, just as he did with the governor's original bill, and
assunmed the commttee would hear from Conm ssi oner Hoffbeck, the
attorney general and all of the governor’s financial experts.
"Unfortunately, the governor's admnistration has prioritized

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- July 13, 2016



other activities" he said, so the comittee wll have
tel econference participation from Assistant Attorney GCeneral
Pokon and Assistant Attorney General MIks. He stated that the
docunments for this hearing include a letter from the
adm ni stration outlining the reasons that activities other than
the introduction of the governor's cornerstone bill are being
prioritized. He expressed hope that M. Pokon and M. MIks
woul d give a conprehensive review of the bill and respond to the
questions fromthe commttee.

1:11: 34 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that if the revenue conm ssioner is
not slated to testify today, the appearance is that the governor
is not |ooking for a solution.

CHAI R STOLTZE added that he wanted the commttee and the public
to know that "W have a few manacles and handcuffs on us as we
start this process.”" He noted that the governor does have a
representative fromthe Mat-Su Valley who is present.

SENATOR COGHI LL advi sed t hat he was l'i stening Vi a
t el econf erence.

1:14:19 PM

EMVA POKON, Attorney 1V, Special Assistant to the Attorney
CGeneral, Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral, Department of Law,
Anchorage, Al aska, speaking via teleconference, i ntroduced
herself and Assistant Attorney GCeneral Bill MIlks who will be
able to respond to questions on any legal issues that arise
t oday.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked, in lieu of the Departnment of Revenue, if
she will be providing information on the fiscal inpacts of SB
5001.

M5. POKON replied that Comm ssioner Hoffbeck asked her to convey
his regrets for not being available this afternoon. She rel ayed
that he would be happy to neet with people in the Mat-Su Valley
and the delegation as tinme permts.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if he characterized SB 5001 correctly when
he called it cornerstone |egislation.

M5. POKON replied as follows:

The Al aska Pernmanent Fund Protection Act, in its
different variations over the course of the last few

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- July 13, 2016



sessi ons, has been an inportant bill [ and] it
continues to be. It does provide the biggest part of
the switching to the fiscal situation today.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Ms. Pokon to proceed with her presentation
He rem nded Ms. Pokon of the commttee's constraints and warned
that deferred questions cause sonme problens, especially during a
speci al sessi on.

1:16: 32 PM

M5. POKON stated that SB 5001 wll Jlook famliar to the
committee as it mrrors the conmttee substitute for SB 128 that
passed the Senate. The commttee heard both SB 128 and Senator
McGQuire’'s SB 114 earlier this year, although the CS that cane
out of Senate Finance is a little different fromthe bills that
this conmttee heard. She explained that her intention is to
provide a concise, technical overview and a few points on the
pur pose of the |egislation.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked her to remind the public of the overlying
purpose and philosophy of the bill and then address the
t echni cal aspects.

M5. POKON said that as oil prices have remained |ow and the
state has drawn down the balance in the CBRF [Constitutional
Budget Reserve Fund], it has becone evident that there will be a
need to draw from the Permanent Fund Earnings Reserve. As a
consequence, the admnistration wants to provide a framework for

doing that in a way that wll support public services while
protecting the dividend and the fund; ultimately, that wll set
the state on a nore positive fiscal path. She stated that is the
purpose and the philosophy behind the bill in its original
formulation and the bill that is before you today; to achieve
this end, the basic provisions in the bill can be broken into

four categories: 1) a formula for calculating how much can be
withdrawn from the earnings reserve on a sustainable basis, 2)
deposits to the corpus of the fund, 3) a new dividend formula,
and 4) nmanagenent provisions and authority of the Al aska
Per manent Fund Cor porati on.

1:19: 29 PM

She said the formula starts wth a sustainable percent-of-
mar ket -value draw (POW) from the earnings reserve to the
general fund; this is 5.25 percent of the average fund value in

the first 5 of the last 6 years. In the second step of the
formula the POW calculation is reduced by $1 for each $1 over
$1.2 billion in production taxes and royalties that are

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- July 13, 2016



deposited in the general fund. She noted that this is a

provi sion that appeared in the State Affairs conmttee
substitute for SB 114 and laid the foundation for a conproni se
bill that both the adm nistration and nenbers of the |egislature

t hought they could support. She said the idea is that as oil

prices recover and there is less need to rely on the permanent
fund, the wthdraw would be reduced; this provision also
addresses the volatility issue, which is a key piece of the
| egi sl ati on.

M5. POKON detailed that the second elenent of the bill addresses
deposits to the <corpus of the permanent fund. First, the
royalties that are deposited to the corpus of the fund are
reduced to the constitutional 25 percent anount rather than the
current 30 percent. There is also a savings rule when oil prices
peak or the state has nore noney than expected; those peak
revenues would be divided between the corpus of the permanent
fund and the CBRF. If wunrestricted revenues exceed the amount
the Legislature appropriates, the excess would be split between
the permanent fund corpus and the CBRF. Finally, the funds in
the earnings reserve that exceed four times the POW draw w |
be transferred back into the corpus.

1:23:19 PM

She said the third element of the bill is the dividend fornul a;
initially it sets the anmount at $1,000 for three years and after
that the fornula is based on 20 percent of the POW draw and 20
percent of the royalties that are deposited in the general fund.
She said she believes the foundation for this provision came out
of CSSB 114 and shows that the commttee’s work was appreciated
and constructive. The admnistration believes that the 20/20
formula will produce dividends of about $1,000 into the future.

She said the fourth elenent relates to the Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation's (APFC) authority. First, the authority to manage
and invest the CBRF will transfer from the Departnent of Revenue
to the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation. Second, the APFC is
added to the Ilist of agencies that are exenpt from the
procurenent rules. Finally, the corporation is able to adopt its
own regul ati ons regardi ng procurenent.

1:26: 03 PM
She presented the followi ng Sectional Analysis for SB 5001:

Section 1. Legislative intent to reevaluate the use of
permanent fund earnings in three years. This matches

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- July 13, 2016



with three years of $1,000 dividends, after which the
legislature will revisit the issue.

Section  2: Directs the Al aska Pernmanent Fund
Corporation (APFC) to adopt regulations simlar to the
state’s procurenent code.

Section 3: Adds the APFC to the list of state agencies
that are exenpt from the general state procurenent
code.

Section 4: Transfers the authority to nmnage and
invest the constitutional budget reserve fund (CBRF)
fromthe Departnent of Revenue to the APFC

Section 5: Requires the APFC to report the bal ance and
returns of the CBRF annually.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked audi ence nenbers to raise their hand if
did not understand or had a question about any of
provi si ons.

1:27:49 PM
M5. POKON continued the sectional analysis as follows:

Section 6: Dedicated deposits of royalties to the
corpus are reduced from about 30 percent of the tota
received to the constitutional mninmm of 25 percent.
Currently, 25 percent of royalties fromold | eases and
50 percent of royalties from new | eases are deposited
into the corpus, which conmes out to about 30 percent
of total royalties.

Section 7: Requires the APFC to determne the net
income of the earnings reserve account (ERA) and
excl udes unrealized gains or | osses from the
definition of “net incone.”" This is consistent wth
current practice.

Section 8: (b) Provides the first part of the draw
formula - the POW. Defines the maxinmum anount
avai lable for distribution each year as 5.25 percent
of the average year-end narket value of the Pernanent
Fund (including the ERA, but not the Anerada Hess
funds) for the first five of the |last six years.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- July 13,

t hey
t he

2016



(c) Provides the second part of the draw forrmula - the
limt. Under the draw limt, for every $1 over $1.2
billion of variable oil and gas revenue (production
taxes and royalties) received in the general fund, $1
is subtracted from the POW calculation in (b). The
l[imt does not apply to the 20 percent of the POW
t hat goes to dividends.

Section 9: Conformng anendnent that clarifies that
the Anerada Hess funds are not included in the draw
calculation in Section 8.

1:29:49 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that Section 9 anends AS 37.13.145(d)
but it's a point of contention that AS 37.13.145(b) has a
requirenment that APFC "Shall transfer from the ERA to the
dividend fund," and the governor vetoed the appropriation. He
asked Ms. Pokon's position whether passing the law would
aut horize a future governor to veto the anmount of the $900, 000
per manent fund.

M5. POKON replied that the attorney general's office believes
that the appropriation for the dividend nmay be vetoed. She
specified as foll ows:

It has been the practice of the Legislature to
appropriate those nonies fromthe ERA to the dividend
fund and wth many of these provisions Dbeing
acconplished through an appropriation-obviously the
power of appropriation rests initially wth the
Legislature so if a particular legislature were to
choose to appropriate.

CHAIR STOLTZE interjected that the power of appropriation rests
exclusively with the Legislature.

M5. POKON apologized for the msstatenent and restated that
while the admnistration is setting out a long-term financial
plan for preserving the value of the permanent fund, future
| egi sl atures would have the authority to appropriate a different
anmount .

1:32: 43 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked how rmuch revenue the statutory change
will generate for the state each year.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- July 13, 2016



M5. POKON replied the total transfer this year wll be $2.4
billion, with 20 percent going to the dividend and $1.92 billion
to general fund purposes. The anmount of revenue that 1is
generated on an annual basis continues to be dependent on the
investment earnings of the fund. She reiterated that the
provi sion establishes the framework for the transfer from the
earnings reserve to the general fund.

1: 33: 48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if it is correct that the Legislature
could take noney out of the earning reserve wthout passage of
SB 5001.

M5. POKON answered yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI asked if transferring $2.4 billion to the
general fund still leaves a deficit of about $2 billion.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that it would help to have Pat Pitney or
Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck participate in the hearing.

M5. POKON replied that her understanding is that in addition to
the transfer of funds from the earnings reserve to the genera

fund, there is approximately $1.2 billion in other state
revenues; altogether it would be about $3.2 billion so a deficit
remai ns. She remarked that there will continue to be a need to
have a conversation about how to fill the gap between the

current budget and what revenue we expect to have on an annual
basi s.

1: 35: 11 PM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the admnistration will continue to have
di scussi ons about how to reduce the gap.

M5. POKON responded that the gap can be closed by reducing
expendi tures or increasing revenue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI remarked that one of the concerns that
former Governor Jay Hammond had and many Al askans have is that

you're taking $2 billion out of the earnings reserve, there is
still a $2 billion deficit, and there will continue to be multi-
billion dollar deficits in future years. He asked what is to

stop a future governor froma veto or a future |legislature from
t aki ng nore out of the dividend.

M5. POKON responded that Senator Wel echowski's question is a
guestion for future legislatures and future governors to answer.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- July 13, 2016



She specified that the endeavor for the legislation is to set up
a sustai nabl e plan for using the pernmanent fund.

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that the bill's title was vague. He asked
if the bill's title was a marketing |abel or attention should
not be paid to the title.

M5. POKON explained that setting up a framework for how to use
the fund is intended to keep it from being used in an arbitrary
or unplanned way. She asserted that setting up a long-term
financial plan around the permanent fund hel ps ensure that we're
not spendi ng down avail abl e funds.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI related that he spoke with an econom st
recently who expressed concern that cutting the dividend to
$1,000 this year will take about $7 million out of the econony.
He remarked that wth declines in oil prices and federal
revenues, nore noney is comng out of the econonmy and that
econonm st expressed that this could tip the state into a severe
recession. He asked if the adm nistration had done any nodeling
on the inpact of renoving $7 nmillion fromthe econony.

1:38:35 PM

M5. POKON replied that she understands that Gunnar Knapp with
|SER [Institute of Social and Econom c Research] conducted an
anal ysis of the short-term inpacts and the report reflects that
ot her actions also have short-term inpacts. She reiterated that
the focus of SB 5001 is to set up a long-term plan that
preserves the fund and ensures a dividend going forward rather
t han having a larger dividend for just a few years.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if the adm nistration would support a
constitutional anmendnent guaranteeing the dividend if the bil
were to pass.

M5. POKON answered that she could not speak to the governor's
posi tion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she had any data on the anpunt of
nmoney that will be lost due to reduced garnishnents as a result
of the reduced dividend.

1:40: 26 PM

M5. POKON replied there probably are no solutions to a problem
this large that won't have consequences. She pointed out that
the dividend was roughly $800 just a few years ago and it wll
go up and down under the current fornula.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- July 13, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI restated his question.
M5. POKON answered that she is not aware of any such anal ysis.

CHAIR STOLTZE rem nded nenbers that the Legislature asked the
O fice of Mnagenent and Budget and the Departnent of Revenue
for a detailed analysis of the inpact the |loss of the dividend
has on the econony. He specified that the analysis is part of
the Legislature's due process to help alert folks that are
affected by this, but a response has not been received in about
ei ght nmonths and that | eads to unheal thy suspi cion.

1:43: 00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how | ong savings will be extended if
SB 5001 were to pass.

M5. POKON replied that she does not know but asserted that SB

5001 will not solve all of Alaska s fiscal problens. She set
forth that nore work needs to be done and how | ong the savings
last will depend on the result of that additional work.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stressed that the question regardi ng savi ngs has
to be answered.

CHAI R STOLTZE concurred with Senat or Huggi ns.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked what the governor's definition is for
"sustainability."

M5. POKON first provided nore information on the bal ance of the
CBRF and the rate it would be spent down. She reported that as
of the end of the last fiscal year there was about $6.5 billion
in the CBRF. She added that approximately $200 nillion in
i nvestment revenue can be expected over the course of FY2017
| eaving a balance of $6.7 billion at the end of FY2017; however,
the draw fromthe CBRF is $3.2 billion, leaving $3.5 billion at
the start of the next fiscal year.

She said the definition of "sustainability" is to wi thdraw an
anount from the earnings reserve that does not exceed a rate
that degrades the inflation-adjusted value of the fund over
time. She added that some earnings stay in the fund so it grows
at |east at the pace of inflation.

1:47:14 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- July 13, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the administration believes the current
budget spending | evel is sustainable over tine.

M5. POKON answered that additional work needs to be done to
solve the budget gap and whether that ultimately is resolved
through additional cuts or additional revenues, is sonething
that will depend on the work of the Legislature and the
adm ni stration goi ng forward.

CHAI R STOLTZE said the fundanental question is whether spending
sust ai nabl e under the nodels the adm ni strati on has devel oped.

M5. POKON stated the governor's full fiscal plan set out the
admnistration's proposal for reaching sustainability; that
proposal included this bill, but SB 5001 is just part of the
pr oposal .

1:49:15 PM

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that talking about the nyriad of taxes
and wusing the permanent fund dividend can occur, but the
di scussion is inconplete wthout talking about spending |evels.
He asked if the commttee can assume that the governor believes
that the budget he submitted is a sustainable anmount.

M5. POKON pointed out that the governor’'s fiscal plan, taken in
its entirety, would put the state in a sustainable budget
situation. She relayed that the governor has been clear in
saying that the fiscal plan is witten in pencil, not pen. She
set forth that the governor's fiscal plan is part of an ongoing
conversation and deliberation with the Legislature and the
people of Alaska. She restated that Comm ssioner Hoffbeck
offered to neet with the Valley delegation as tinme permts.

CHAIR STOLTZE clarified that the conmmttee neeting is not a
neeting of the Valley delegation and even if it was, that would
not take care of the concerns of the State Affairs Conmittee. He
asserted that the conmittee is doing its legal responsibility
under our Uniform Rules, dealing with the subject nmatter
assigned by the Senate president on the governor's cornerstone
pi ece of | egislation.

1:53:18 PM

M5. POKON replied that Chair Stoltze's point is well taken and
t he exchange she had with the conm ssioner focused on the fact
that the commttee hearing is occurring in Wasilla. She assured
Chair Stoltze that the conm ssioner would be happy to neet with
the people interested in discussing the bill.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- July 13, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI pointed out a finding by the Rasnuson
Foundation that cutting the permanent fund is very regressive
because it takes an equal anount from each person, regardl ess of
their income. He asked if M. Pokon agreed with the Rasnmuson
Foundati on's fi nding.

M5. POKON replied that there are nultiple elenments in the
governor's fiscal plan and the challenge is a nmultibillion
dol l ar problem and only one nultibillion dollar tool to address
it; other pieces contribute, but not at that |evel.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER questi oned why soneone from the governor’s
office wasn't either at the hearing or on the phone to answer
guesti ons.

CHAIR STOLTZE said the question is very nmuch on point, but M.
Pokon is in a rough position.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER stated that he would like to see Governor
Wal ker in the witness chair.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that he shares that frustration, but his
preference woul d have been to have Ms. Pitney present the bill
He added that he hoped that the nedia would be nore interested
in covering the hearing.

1:58: 20 PM
M5. POKON continued the sectional analysis as follows:

Section 10: (e) Plans an annual appropriation fromthe
ERA to the general fund in an anobunt not to exceed the
anount determ ned by the draw fornula in Section 8.

(f) Plans for funds in the ERA over 21 percent (4
times 5.25 percent) of the fund's value to be
transferred to the corpus.

Section 11: Establishes a new dividend formula
Di vidends are conprised of 20 percent of the full 5.25
percent POW in Section 8 and 20 percent of prior year
royalties that have gone to the general fund.

Establishes a “savings rule” that plans for excess UGF

revenues (those exceeding UG- appropriations) to be
deposited in the CBRF and the permanent fund cor pus.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- July 13, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE asked M. Pokon to describe the sources of the
royalties and the anmount this year.

M5. POKON explained that royalties are paynents arising out of
| eases. SB 5001 |ists mneral |ease rentals, royalties, royalty
sale proceeds, net profit shares, federal mneral revenue
sharing paynents, and bonuses received by the state from oil
gas, and m nerals.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked what the anount of the royalties are for
FY2017.

M5. POKON answered that her recollection is $560 mllion would
go to the general fund.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if that calculates to $112 mlli on.

M5. POKON replied that she believes that's correct, then 20
percent of the POW draw would be an additional $480 mllion.
She noted that a subsequent section sets the dividend at $1, 000
per person for the next three years.

2:01: 51 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if his calculation is correct that
t he dividend woul d be about $800 wi thout the $1, 000 provision.

M5. POKON replied yes and added that is why the $1,000 provision
is in the bill. She noted that Departnment of Revenue nodeling
indicates that dividends will be about $1,000 into the future
She detailed that Section 1 expresses legislative intent to
revisit the topic in three years, which correlates with the
t hree-year $1,000 dividend provision; that provision cane from
t he Senate Finance comm ttee substitute.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that the governor endorsed it by putting
it inthe current bill.

M5. POKON agr eed.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER ref erenced Senat or W el echowski's
cal cul ati on of an $800 dividend under current revenues and asked
where the other $200 will cone from to bring the dividend to
$1, 000.

M5. POKON replied that the funds were appropriated from the ERA
this year just as they were for the dividend.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- July 13, 2016



UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the bill provides a maximm
di vi dend of $1,000, but it's not a guaranteed anount.

2:04: 57 PM
M5. POKON answered that the language in the bill says the
di vidend wi |l be $1, 000.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that it's subject to veto.

M5. POKON confirmed the admnistration's position is that the
governor has the authority to veto appropriations.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI read Section 15 that says the dividend
"shal |l be $1000" for three years, and asked if M. Pokon agrees
that the governor could veto it down to $500 next year and $200
the follow ng year.

M5. POKON replied that the intention is to support the $1000
dividend [for fiscal years 2017, 2018, and 2019].

2:06: 54 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that “shall” legally neans a
person is required to do something but her position is that
“shall” means “may” in this circunstance.

M5. POKON answered that the franmework is set out in statute, but
it is subject to appropriation by the Legislature and the
governor has authority to veto an appropriation.

CHAIR STOLTZE, noting that the dividend is "capped" in the
fourth fiscal year, asked M. Pokon to explain the difference
bet ween “guaranteed” and “capped.” He asked if the governor's
intent is to hold the dividend down to the capped level if
revenues grow substantially.

M5. POKON clarified that the fornula does not cap the dividend;

however, if oil prices spike or production increases through the
royalty conmponent of the formula, dividends would al so increase,

potentially well beyond $1,000 per person. Additionally, if the
fund increases due to robust investnent revenues, the POW
portion of the fornmula would go up, also creating the potentia

for dividends of nore than $1, 000.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the |anguage in Section 15 neans
that the $1, 000 dividend applies to the upcom ng divi dend.

M5. POKON answered yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- July 13, 2016



2:10: 32 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she believes that any of the
| anguage in Section 15 is anbi guous and added that soneone could
say they are due a full dividend in October 2016.

M5. POKON replied that she did not believe there is any
anbiguity. She specified that the intent is for the dividend
fund to distribute $1,000 to each eligible Al askan.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that Representative Gattis, Representative
Tilton and the Executive Director of the Pernmanent Fund
Cor poration, Angela Rodell, are listening online.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that the audience participation was
instructive.

VB. POKON returned attention to the sectional anal ysi s
expl aining that the second part has the "savings rule;" that is
the provision that would plan for excess unrestricted genera
fund revenues to be deposited equally between the CBRF and the
per manent fund cor pus.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked what the philosophy was for selecting those
accounts.

M5. POKON expl ained that the provision was added by the Senate
Finance Commttee and she was not aware of their reasoning, but
the adm nistration supports it as well as other variations of
t he savings rule.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the 50/50 rule is automatic or if
the excess f unds woul d be available for | egislative
appropriation

M5. POKON answered that the bill provides for the transfers to
occur by appropriation.

2:15: 14 PM
CHAIR STOLTZE commented that a constitutional provision could
make sonet hing aut omati c.

M5. POKON agreed and added that each year the Legislature has

the authority to decide whether or not to appropriate in that
year.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- July 13, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if an OWB director and a finance chair could
tag team and figure out how to spend the appropriation.

M5. POKON opined that spending was the judgenent of the
Legi sl at ure.

She continued the sectional analysis as foll ows:

Section 12: Conform ng |anguage requiring the APFC to
adopt regulations to inplenment Section 2. She rem nded
the nenbers that section directs the corporation to
adopt regulations simlar to the state's procurenent
code.

Section 13: Is <conformng |anguage that excludes
mental health trust fund inconme from the draw formula
in Section 8. She added that those funds that are part
of a trust will continue in their current framework.

Section 14: |Is conform ng |anguage that provides that
once the funds are appropriated from the ERA to the
di vidend fund, the Depart nent of Revenue will
distribute the dividend checks without further
appropriation.

Section 15: Provides that notwithstanding low oil
prices today, the permanent fund dividends wll be
$1,000 for fiscal years 2017, 2018, and 2019.

Section 16: Is a conform ng anendnent that reflects
that funds are appropriated to the dividend fund.

Section 17: Provi des that once the funds are
appropriated from the ERA to the dividend fund, the
Department of Revenue shall pay dividends each year
Wi thout a separate appropriation.

2:18: 03 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOABKI requested an expl anation of the |anguage in
Section 17, page 8, line 4.

M5. POKON replied the |anguage originated from the CS that cane
out of the Senate Finance Conmittee. She said her understanding
is that it is a clarification in statute that reflects how DOR
has been interpreting the statute.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 16- July 13, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked if the current practice is that
paynent of the dividend does not require appropriation.

V. POKON replied that her understanding is that an
appropriation fromthe ERA to the dividend fund is required. The
| anguage in Section 17 reflects the current practice which is
that after the appropriation, the Departnent of Revenue follows
the fornmula and distributes individual dividend checks to
el igible Al askans.

2:20:15 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI stated that he found it is interesting that
an appropriation is not needed to disburse $1.5 billion.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked what the process would be if the phrase
"W thout further appropriation" was not inserted in Section 17.

M5. POKON replied that the process would be the sanme and pointed
out that the |anguage was for clarification.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the |l anguage is critical.

M5. POKON answered that the language is not «critical, but
provi des clarification.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if M. Pokon would define the annua
paynment of the pernmnent fund dividend <checks as an
appropriation under existing | aw.

M5. POKON answered that the <current practice has been to
appropriate the full amount from the ERA to the dividend fund
and then the Departnent of Revenue distributes the checks.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if for 30 years the state has all owed
the automatic transfer of up to $1.5 billion from the dividend
fund to the people of Al aska wi thout an appropriation.

M5. POKON restated that an appropriation from the ERA is
required.

2:22: 48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asserted that there is an appropriation
from the ERA to the dividend fund but for nore than 30 years
there has been no appropriation from the dividend fund to the
peopl e of Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- July 13, 2016



M5. POKON replied that her understanding is that that has been
the practice and deferred further cooment to M. M Ks.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  expressed interest in hearing from M.
M I Kks.

WLLIAM M LKS, Assistant Attorney General, Cvil D vision, Labor
and State Affairs Section, Departnent of Law, Juneau, Al aska,
speaking via tel econference, explained that the practice for the
last 30 years is that the Legislature passes an appropriation
bill that provides the sumof noney that will be paid out of the
ERA for the paynent of pernanent fund divi dends.

SENATOR W EL ECHOWNEKI sunmmari zed t hat t here are t wo
appropriations: an appropriation from the ERA to the dividend
fund and an appropriation from the dividend fund to the people
of Al aska. He asked which appropriation the Legislature has nmade
for the past 30 years.

MR. M LKS answered that this year, for exanple, the Legislature
passed HB 256 that provided for an appropriation fromthe ERA to
the dividend fund for the paynment of permanent fund dividends;
that has been the practice for the past 30 years and reflects
the basic constitutional framework of the State of Alaska. He
added as foll ows:

The Legislature has the appropriation authority.
Spendi ng f unds nmust go t hr ough | egi sl ative
appropri ation, and attached to t hat is t he
constitutional provision that gives the governor
l[imted role on appropriation, which is the ability to
strike or reduce an appropriation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what is being changed by adding the
| anguage in Section 17, page 8, line 4.

MR. M LKS answered the | anguage was probably added in the Senate
Finance Conmittee. He agreed with M. Pokon that it is not
necessary, but it clarifies the current process.

2:25:48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there would still need to be an
appropriation from the ERA to the dividend fund if the bill
passes, or would it happen automatically.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- July 13, 2016



MR MLKS answered yes. He specified that there nust be an
appropriation and that reflects the constitutional franmework of
the State of Al aska.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it is his opinion that the
| anguage really does not change anyt hi ng.

MR M LKS answered as foll ows:

| think we're agnostic on that issue. It's in there,
it's not in there; the process is as it's been
hi storically.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the governor has the legal ability to
pause the distribution of a dividend once it's been appropriated
if the governor has not exercised a veto.

MR MLKS replied that he was not famliar with the concept of
" pause. "

CHAIR STOLTZE specified that "pause" is a new term he's heard
recently. He again asked M. MIlks if he thinks the governor
coul d “pause” a portion of a dividend distribution.

MR. M LKS responded that the constitution set up the framework
where the Legislature appropriates and included in the provision
is the authority for the governor to exercise a line-itemveto.

2:29:12 PM

CHAIR STOLTZE renmarked that he is trying to figure out how new
powers perneate when they get established. He continued as
fol |l ows:

Clearly the governor has asserted those powers on
projects. Do you think he has that power on the
dividend if he decides that there's too nuch noney
going to the private sector and government needs it
wor se?

MR MLKS replied that the provision in the constitution speaks
for itself. He pointed out that there is an appropriation for
t he dividend and the governor can reduce that.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the governor has the constitutional
power, after the dividend has been appropriated, to unilaterally
decide to reduce all or a portion of it. He provided an exanple
as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- July 13, 2016



Much |ike he can stop a project that has been duly
appropriated from going forward-after he's signed the
appropriation or another governor has signed it.

MR. M LKS answered that the paynent of the dividend requires an
appropriation, and there is a process for a veto and veto
override that results in a sum that is paid pursuant to the
statute.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the governor is on wobbly constitutiona
ground if he pauses or wunilaterally cancels a construction
project that's al ready been appropri ated.

MR. MLKS replied that he explained the process for the dividend
that results in a set sumthat is paid to Al askans pursuant to
the statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said AS 37.13.145(b) says, in part:

The corporation shall transfer from the ERA to the
di vi dend fund.

He asked if there is another section that says soneone shall pay
out the permanent fund dividend.

MR. MLKS replied the dividend fund statute.

M5. POKON added that it is AS 43.23.055 and the fornula that
det erm nes each individual check is set out in AS 43.23.025(a).

2:32:50 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the governor could wunilaterally
stop the paynent of all or a portion of the dividend to

i ndi vidual Alaskans if he did not veto the appropriation, and
i nstead took action after the transfer of funds went into | aw

VR. MLKS reiterated that the process set out in the
constitution is that the Legislature has the power of
appropriation and the governor's role includes the right to veto
"either funding or reduction.” He further explained that the
constitution governs how appropriations are made and clarifies
that a statute passed by one |egislature cannot freeze any
future Jlegislatures. Each |legislature has the ability to
exercise its power of appropriation and budgeting needs on a
yearly basis.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- July 13, 2016



2: 35: 33 PM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if it is far-fetched to think that a
governor could not cite a fiscal crisis and get an attorney
general opinion saying the governor has the ability to inmpound
an appropriation after the budget passed into |law. He asked if
an attorney general decided not to sign would be far-fetched.

MR. MLKS said he already presented his view on the matter. He
expl ai ned that the constitution sets out how the powers work for
spendi ng, appropriations, vetoes, and the statutes. He specified
that the statute is followd once there is authorized spending.
He pointed out that the focus on today's conmmttee neeting is on
the dividend and he has tried to explain how the paynent of
di vidends, in conpliance with the constitution, has historically
been t hrough the appropriation process. He detailed as foll ows:

The point at which the governor can step in and
i nfluence those dividends is under the constitution's
provision for exercise of the veto in reduction of
spendi ng.

He said the Legislature has nmade an appropriation for dividends,
there was a veto, and the Legislature has the constitutional
ability to override the veto. He summarized that the sum that
ultimately results for dividends wll be distributed according
to the statute.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented, "W've probably run into a brick wall
here. ™"

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said his understanding is that an attorney
general opinion in the early years said the transfer was
automatic and a | egislative appropriation was not needed.

MR. M LKS agreed that a very early opinion suggested that; but,
quickly after that the Departnent of Law clarified that an
appropriation would be necessary. He added that Article 1V,
Section 16 of the constitution makes reference to appropriations
for Al aska permanent fund divi dends.

2:38: 44 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for a copy of the early attorney
general opinion.

MR. M LKS agreed to provide a copy.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- July 13, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. MIlks to describe an attorney genera
opinion and the force of law it has.

MR. M LKS explained that it's the best reasoning at the tinme on
an issue presented to the attorney general. He noted that the
opinion on the issue of the permanent fund dividend has been the
sanme for several decades.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked where he would place the opinion on the
scal e between an advisory mechanism to the chief executive and
bei ng i npassi bl e and having the force of |aw.

MR MLKS replied that the opinions are advisory to the
executive branch and carry varying weight. At tinmes the Al aska
Suprene Court has given great weight to attorney genera
opinions and other tines they were considered and not given
great weight.

2:41: 05 PM

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that an attorney general opinion can often
forego the constitutional three readings in both bodies and
signing of a bill by the governor. He asked if an attorney
general's opinion can have the sanme force of repealing or making
I aw.

MR MLKS clarified that an attorney general opinion is not a
statute.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if an attorney general's opinion has a
conparative wei ght in inpact.

MR MLKS replied that an attorney general's opinion is
typically an interpretation of what a statute neans.

CHAI R STOLTZE remarked that M. M|l ks and his departnent tend to
mnimze itself too nuch

M5. POKON pointed out that the Departnent of Law s website has a
description of attorney general opinions and what they do.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Pokon how she would describe attorney
general opinions and the inpact they have.

M5. POKON answered that she would agree with everything M.
Ml ks stated. She stated that the attorney general 1is an
advi sory opinion that sonetinmes has weight and sonetinmes does
not .

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- July 13, 2016



2:42: 39 PM

MR. M LKS enphasized that an attorney-general opinion is
inmportant. He said the opinion is the attorney general's
consideration of a statute and what it neans, but it is the
Al aska Suprene Court that sets a range of what the weight of the
opinion will be, from"very inportant” to "nust be considered."

M5. POKON continued the sectional analysis as foll ows:

Section 18: Repeals provisions relating to the CBRF
subaccount, the forner dividend fornula, and the
inflation proofing cal cul ation.

Section 19: Repeals Section 15 ($1,000 dividend) after
three years.

Section 20: Provides transition |anguage authorizing
the Comm ssioner of Revenue and the APFC to adopt
regul ati ons, policies and procedures to inplenent this
Act .

Section 21: Retroactive effective date of July 1, 2016
for Sec. 6-11 and 13-18.

Section 22: Imediate effective date for remaining
secti ons.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked about the summary docunment and
Section 15.

CHAIR STOLTZE summarized that the question asked about the
substantive effect of changing the term "will" to "shall" in
Section 15.

M5. POKON explained that the intent of the summary docunent is
to reflect the language in the legislation; under this statute,
the dividends will be $1,000 [for fiscal years 2017, 2018, and
2019].

CHAI R STOLTZE, relaying a question from the audience, asked if
there is a substantive difference between the ternms "will" and
"shal | . "

MS. POKON replied not for these purposes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 23- July 13, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE, relaying a question from the audience, asked if
she woul d describe it as style or substance.

M5. POKON replied that there is a stylistic difference in
producing a summary docunent versus the exact |anguage in the
| egi sl ati on.

CHAI R STOLTZE requested that witten explanation be provided.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER expressed confusion about how the terns
"constitutional,"” "statute,” "allocation,”" and "appropriation
bl end."” She perceives statute overrides constitution at points
and appropriations are not pernmanent, but flexible.

2:46: 50 PM
M5. POKON asked if the audi ence nenber asked what the respective
authority is between the constitution and st at utes.

CHAI R STOLTZE added as fol |l ows:

And how these different approaches conpete wth
exi sting constitutional authority.

He acknowl edged that none of this legislation changes the
constitution.

M5. POKON explained that the constitution is controlling and
statutes nmust follow the provisions of the constitution, or be
interpreted such that they do.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked to which departnent Section 17 refers.

M5. POKON replied that the section refers to the Departnent of
Revenue.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked if she would characterize SB 5001 as a
revenue bill.

2:48:. 45 PM

M5. POKON described the bill as a financial plan for how to
rationally use a fund and the investnent proceeds from that
f und.

SENATOR HUGAE NS suggested it would be worthwhile for M. Pokon
to explain why the Departnent of Law is introducing the bill
not the Departnent of Revenue. "Whose brainchild is this? Gve
us a little bit of background."”

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- July 13, 2016



M5. POKON expl ained that over the course of the last year she
had the opportunity to work wth the Departnent of Revenue on
the technical work as well as developing the |egislation. Wen
Conmi ssi oner Hof fbeck was not available, it nade sense for her
to provide an overview of the bill and answer questions fromthe
commttee today.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the new attorney general wll have an
active role in the permanent fund legislation, simlar to forner
Attorney Ceneral Richards.

M5. POKON answered that she does not know what the new attorney
general will want to do or what role she will play.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if she had briefed the new attorney genera
on SB 5001.

M5. POKON replied that she has not had an opportunity to have a
conversation wth the new attorney general.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if she is aware that anyone has briefed the
new attorney general on SB 5001.

M5. POKON responded that the new attorney general will not cone
in to the position until next nmonth and she is not aware of any
briefing, but the acting attorney general has been bri ef ed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if either Governor Hanmond or Governor
Hi ckel vetoed part of the permanent fund [appropriation].

2:52:25 PM
M5. POKON replied that she has not researched Senator Huggins'
guesti on.

CHAI R STOLTZE reported that Governor Hammond vetoed the original
| egislation establishing the permanent fund because it had a
statutory framework, he demanded a constitutional amendnent and
t hat was approved by the voters in 1976.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked who has vetoed part of the permanent fund
or the permanent fund that was allocated to the citizens of the
state by the |l egislature.

M5. POKON replied that she is unaware of that having happened in
t he past.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 25- July 13, 2016



SENATOR HUGGA NS clarified that he is asking for the name of who
has vet oed.

M5. POKON responded that she did not know t he answer.
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about within the |ast 60 days.

M5. POKON apol ogi zed that she was thinking about the history of
the fund. She specified that Governor Wil ker did veto a portion
of the dividend appropriation.

2:54:42 PM
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked a question that was not audi bl e.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Senator W el echowski to provide an
expl anat i on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI sunmmarized that the Legislature passed a
piece of legislation creating a permanent fund and the late
Governor Jay Hammond vetoed it because he wanted the matter to
go before the voters. The voters subsequently enshrined the
Al aska  Per manent Fund in Section 9.15 of the Al aska
Constitution. He said the argunment cones from the |ast sentence
of that section:

Al incone from the pernmanent fund shall be deposited
in the general fund unless otherw se provided by | aw

He said in 1982 the Legislature set up the permanent fund
di vidend through a series of statutes. One of the nore inportant
of those is AS 37.13.145(b); that statute says the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation shall transfer from the ERA to the
di vidend fund. Soon thereafter, an attorney general opinion said
the transfer from the corporation to the dividend fund is
automatic. A side note in the [1994] Al aska Suprene Court
deci sion, Hickel el al v. Cowper also said the transfer fromthe
earnings reserve to the dividend fund happens automatically. A
few years later a different attorney general issued an opinion
saying the transfer fromthe ERA to the dividend fund should be
t hrough | egi sl ative appropriations. He added as foll ows:

For roughly 30 years the legislature has been
appropriating the anount necessary to pay the
[di vidend] and no governor in the history has vetoed
t his.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- July 13, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI argued that the intent was that the
transfer would be automatic so there is nothing for the governor
to veto. He spoke with the people at the Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation and they said they transferred the anount the
governor suggested, not the full amount of the dividend; when he
asked why, they said it was based on the attorney general's
opinion. He opined that if there was a legal claim at this
point, it would be against the APFC, not the governor, because
the law says the corporation shall transfer the funds, it does
not say the corporation may transfer the funds, "They didn't do
it. They're violating the [aw "

2:59:12 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his discussions with people who were
there in the early days indicate that their intent was to nake
it an automatic transfer. He renmarked that he does not know how
a court would rule and added as foll ows:

| feel that based on the legislative intent that 1've
heard, yeah the court would rule in our favor. That
this can be vetoed and the Permanent Fund Corporation
has to transfer it.

He confirnmed that he is gathering all the history on the matter.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that, whichever way this is decided, the
decision will be a footnote in the statutes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI opined that if the Legislature does not

overturn the veto, there is a good chance there wll be a
| awsui t .
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the bill is really necessary to

make it so that the legislature can say, 'W're going to use the
earnings reserve.' or is it only the governor that can do it.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Pokon to respond by sunmarizing the
rationale for this nmechanism as opposed to a direct
appropriation fromthe earnings reserve fund.

3:01: 29 PM

M5. POKON answered that she believes this is a process, in
partnership with the Legislature, to set out a plan in statute
for the dividend. She added as foll ows:

W have acknow edged a nunber of times in conmttee
hearings, the Legislature has actually been very

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- July 13, 2016



disciplined in following the statutory terns about how
we manage the earnings of the permanent fund.

M5. POKON said SB 5001 recogni zes the i mm nent point:
Where the Legislature and the adm nistration wouldn't
have any choice but to be looking to the earnings

reserve for UGF [unrestricted general fund].

She sunmmarized that the intent was to prepare for that in
partnership with the Legislature.

3:03:13 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS t hanked Ms. Pokon and M. MIks for their work
on the bill and enphasized the inportance of resurrecting the

phil osophy of “partnering” between the adm nistration and the
Legi sl ature because it has di mnished over the |ast couple of
years. He asserted that the only group of people that suffer
wi t hout partnering are the people of Al aska.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER stated that she believes the Legislature
has bent over backwards to partner.

3:05: 00 PM

At ease

3:19: 29 PM

CHAI R STOLTZE reconvened the neeting and announced the conmttee
woul d hear from Angela Rodell, the Executive Director of the

Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation. He noted that Ms. Rodell is a
former comm ssioner of the Departnent of Revenue and also did
consulting work for the Senate Finance Commttee.

ANGELA RODELL, Executive Director and Chief Executive Oficer
(CEO), Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation (APFC), Juneau, Al aska,
stated that SB 5001 does change sone things for the corporation,
but does not change or affect the mission of the fund that was
set out 40 years ago. She expl ained as foll ows:

Ve wll still manage the pernanent fund core
investments and we wll do that wusing a prudent
investor rule to maximze the value and protect the
fund for this and all future generations of Al askans.

She set forth that the first change for the corporation is to

provide increased flexibility to rmanage sone investnents by
creating an exenption to the state procurenent code. She said

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- July 13, 2016



the corporation currently is allowed to hire investnent managers
wi thout having to go through the procurenent code, but it nust
go through the procurenent code to make direct investnents and
to get certain types of expertise that is unrelated to the
i nvestnment but provides insight into the investnent itself. She
cited the investnent in Juno Therapeutics as an exanple. She
detailed that APFC wanted to hear from scientists and doctors
about the validity of the science or nedicine, but that would
have to go through the |engthy state procurenent process, which
works at odds with nmaking tinmely investnent decisions. She said
the new process would be simlar to the state procurenent code
with the proposals passing the Board of Trustees, going through
a regulatory procedure, passing regulations, and taking public
comment .

M5. RODELL detailed that the second change affecting the
corporation is to transfer managenent of the Constitutional
Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF) from the Treasury Division of the
Departnment of Revenue to the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation

this would allow the corporation to invest the CBRF in the sane
i nvestnment strategy and asset allocation as the pernmanent fund
itself.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Rodell to discuss how the CBRF is
managed long term versus short term and how the APFC and the
Senate Finance Committee jointly agreed on this provision.

3:23:40 PM

M5. RODELL expl ai ned that under current statute nost of the CBRF
nmust be invested in short-term assets, although the conmm ssioner
of revenue does have the ability to invest in longer-term
i nvestnments, such as nore stocks, if the fund is not expected to
be used in the next five years. She detailed that the limtation
wth the current statute is that there is an expectation that
the reserve fund will be used inside of five years due to the
state's current fiscal pi cture. She asserted that t he
expectation under SB 5001 is that the ability to use sone of the
ERA will allow the CBRF to be invested a little |longer term She
reiterated that the CBRF would be nanaged alongside the
permanent fund and in the sane assets, generating funds to
transfer out of the ERA to assist with the state fiscal plan
along with funding the dividend in the future.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the corpus, the earnings reserve

fund, and the permanent fund dividend fund are invested
differently or in the sanme pool.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 29- July 13, 2016



M5. RODELL answered that the corpus and the ERA are invested by
the corporation as one pool; through accounting procedures, they
are allocated a portion of the principal and investnent
earnings. The dividend fund is held, nanaged, and invested by
t he Departnent of Revenue.

CHAI R STOLTZE cited the constitutional anendnent forner CGovernor
Frank Murkowski introduced for a percent of market value payout
that many people thought was aggressive at 5 percent. He cited
an article in the April 6, 2016 issue of the Journal of Comrerce
that said some of the retirement nanagenent funds were not
neeting expected goals; conceding this was not an apples-to-
appl es conpari son, he asked M. Rodel | to discuss her
pr of essi onal opi ni on about the proposed [5.25 percent] payout.

3:27:48 PM

M5. RODELL replied that the Departnent of Revenue has taken the
| ead on nodeling sustainability and the 5.25 payout anount cane
out of a nunber of conversations and positions, as opposed to
sustainability. She said it is obvious that the nore you take
the | ess sustainable the fund will be over time. The unaudited
estimate for FY2016 is 1.4 percent, but given all of the turnoil
over the course of the fiscal year from the significant inpact
on the stock market in Decenber through February and the Brexit
issues that roiled the markets the |ast week of the fiscal year

she was pleased with finishing the fiscal year in positive
territory; however, the percentage is nowhere near expectations
to earn 7 or 7.25 percent to sustain a 5.25 percent draw each
year.

She said there are two things in the bill that are worth noting
that are relative to the 5.25 percent. First, the corporation
will determne what anpbunt is available for distribution. She

detailed that there is a straight calculation based on 5.25
percent of five of the preceding six fiscal years to determne
the amount of market value. She said it is inportant to note is
that Section 10, line 23 and line 24 of the proposed bill says
the Legislature may appropriate up to that anount. She pointed
out that if the Legislature is concerned, it could draw | ess and
| eave anounts behind. Second, there are caps in Section 8 with
the $1.2 billion if production taxes start to increase. Finally,
there is a review provision every three years to nmake sure the
ERA is not being depleted too quickly, amunts are continuing to
accrue, and the fund is continuing to grow. Wat SB 5001 has
done is try to bal ance sone of the neasures with the higher 5.25
percent draw by countering that with sone of these options for
future legislators to use.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- July 13, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE asked if it is dangerous to enshrine the
percentage Ms. Rodell would like to produce for the budget as
opposed to what is sustainable. He asked Ms. Rodell to candidly
di scuss the inportance of sustainability.

3:32: 55 PM

M5. RODELL replied that without wading into the policy decision
of should or shouldn't you draw on the ERA, the one thing that
the commttee nmay want to think about regarding spending versus
revenue is that Al aska has always found itself in a different
position than other states. One of the plusses of a bill Iike SB
5001, if you choose to draw out of the earnings reserve, is
knowing a portion of the revenue, which is really unusual. She
poi nted out that after paynent of a dividend, about $1.9 billion
to $2 billion would be generated for the state budget; that is
not sufficient revenue to fund the budget at this point, given
where the unrestricted general fund budget is.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if it is not inadequate if only revenues and
not reductions is | ooked at.

M5. RODELL agreed with Chair Stoltze but pointed out that in
January legislators will start with a known revenue nunber and
then have a discussion about unknown revenues, which are tax
revenues that have yet to conme in. She summarized as foll ows:

You're not as reliant as in the past on forecasted
revenues for determning a sustainable or appropriate
budget .

CHAI R STOLTZE asked what M. Rodell believes is a sustainable
anmount .

3:35: 06 PM

V. RODELL answer ed t hat everybody’ s definition of
"sustainability" is different and her personal priority is not
rel evant. She added as foll ows:

W will do what we can to continue to increase the
value and to make as nuch noney as we can for the
State of Al aska.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked what general cautions she woul d give.

M5. RODELL cautioned that 5.25 percent is high in today's
environment. She said if markets continue to performas they did

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 31- July 13, 2016



over the last year and returns over the next five years are one
to two percent per year and ten-year treasury yields are as |ow
as they have been since Wrld War 11, 5.25 percent needs to be
recogni zed as possi bly depleting the ERA faster than intended.

3:38:43 PM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Rodell agrees that that ultimately
erodes the value of the fund itself.

MS. RODELL answered correct.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if he is going too far out on a linb to say
that an overly aggressive payout could erode the principle just
as much as an appropriation.

M5. RODELL opined that Chair Stoltze was going a little too far
because the three-year |ookback wll give a sense that the ERA
is eroding to the point that it is not sustaining itself. She
summari zed as foll ows:

Personally, | don’'t think we will ever actually reach
t hat point because there will be alarm bells going off
first, that everyone is going to be very aware of and
concer ned about.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that in 2010 there was an issue about
not having enough in the ERA to pay the dividend. He asked if SB
5001 fixes that problem so there will always be a dividend, even
if it is reduced.

M5. RODELL answered that she would defer to the Departnent of
Law, but her wunderstanding is that under SB 5001 there wll
al ways be a dividend. She noted that 20 percent of the dividend
conmes directly fromroyalties.

3:42: 06 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that he would like clarification
from the Departnment of Law. He pointed out that this year the
anount from royalties was $112 mllion and the amount from the
earnings was $480 mllion and his calculation is that would have
resulted in a $100 divi dend.

M5. RODELL replied that she had not |ooked at the nunbers
Senat or W el echowski not ed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 32- July 13, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE said his historical observation is that the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation is not intricately involved in the
di vi dend.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the governor could collateralize
the corpus of the fund under the existing permanent fund versus
SB 5001.

M5. RODELL clarified that the Board of Trustees has that
authority, not the governor.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that they all serve at the will of the
governor and can be replaced w thout cause.

M5. RODELL clarified that trustees can only be renoved for
cause.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Rodell to describe the nakeup of the
boar d.

3:44: 33 PM

M5. RODELL explained that the Board of Trustees is made up of
six nmenbers: four public nenbers, preferably with a background
in finance, the conm ssioner of the Departnent of Revenue, and a
head of departnment of the governor's cabinet. Menbers serve
staggered, four-year ternms SO one seat expires each year.
Governor \Wal ker appointed Marty Rutherford to a public seat this
year and reappointed Carl Brady to a public seat |ast year. Bill
Moran is the chair of the board and has been serving since 2007,
his term will expire in 2018. Larry Cash is the fourth public
menber and his term will expire in 2017. Revenue Conm Sssioner
Hof f beck serves on the board and Governor Walker appointed
former Attorney Ceneral Richards to the head of departnent
position. She disclosed that there has been no notice as to who
will replace M. Richards.

3:46: 46 PM

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the APFC woul d benefit from a seat
on the stock exchange, wusing index funds wth extrene wde
di versification, and sonething near a 4 percent draw.

M5. RODELL expl ai ned that about 40 percent of the permanent fund
is invested in public equities, using a nunber of passive index
funds along wth sonme active strategies; because, it 1is
inmportant to the corporation to have a very diverse array of
investnments to nmaximze returns and not be overly affected by
things that happen worldwi de, they created an "all-weather

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 33- July 13, 2016



portfolio" that has about 55 percent invested in publicly-traded
mar kets and 45 percent in private nmarket type securities. She
detailed that fees are inportant and they have worked hard to
reduce them by taking on nore internal managenent. She pointed
out that for 35 years APFC have nanaged their bond portfolio in-
house. She noted that APFC also manages real estate and snall
pieces of asset <classes in-house, thereby reducing fees
significantly. She said an inportant note with regard to the 4
per cent payout suggesti on, the percent of mar ket val ue
resolution in 2003-2004 was a constitutional anendnent that
woul d have drawn on the full value of the fund and would have
elimnated the ERA

M5. RODELL stated that what SB 5001 proposes is a distribution
rule on just the ERA. She summarized as foll ows:

What ever the percentage is, that anmount is only com ng
out of the ERA, even though it will be calculated on
the full anmpbunt of the fund plus the ERA

3:50: 33 PM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the ERA is included in the $53 billion
estimated total of the permanent fund.

M5. RODELL answered yes. She specified that the end of the
fiscal year, and before any distribution for dividends, the ERA
was about $8.5 billion, and about $45 billion was in the corpus
or principal of the fund.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked what happened to the funds that were
appropriated fromthe ERA and the governor vetoed.

M5. RODELL replied that the corporation has been advised to
transfer the amount of the appropriation and hold the renaining
amount in the ERA where it will continue to earn a return.

3:52:19 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the interaction is between APFC
and the executive branch because there seens to be conpeting
views and perspectives. He asked how independent is the
Per manent Fund Corporation when taking legal advice from the
Departnent of Law.

M5. RODELL explained that for admnistrative purposes, APFC is
an executive branch entity that resides within the Departnent of
Revenue. She said the corporation has had in-house general
counsel since 2008-2009, and before then was required to use an

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 34- July 13, 2016



assistant attorney general from the Departnent of Law. The Board
of Trustees prepares the budget and it goes through the sane
hurtl es as other departnment budgets but it is ultimately part of
the governor's budget bill. Wile the corporation has an
exenption from the state Personnel Act, it is subject to state
procurenent, state travel and other requirenents so the |ines
get blurry at tines. APFC is a quasi-corporation and an entity
bel onging to the State of Al aska.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said he contacted the permanent fund office
and was told that on the advice of the Departnent of Law, the
transfer fromthe earnings reserve to the dividend fund was nmade
in the anount that the governor had vetoed. He asked Ms. Rodel

i f her understandi ng of what happened is the sane.

3:55:51 PM

M5. RODELL answered that the funds have not been transferred

She specified that the corporation requested guidance from the
Department of Law and was told to transfer the vetoed anount in

the appropriation bill wusing the customary process. She added
that the corporation typically does not transfer any dividend
anount to the Departnment of Revenue wuntil the books are

conpletely closed for the nonth of June, generally occurring in
August. She said the corporation is pursuing on the sane
timet abl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she wll seek independent |ega
advice or follow the gui dance of the Departnent of Law.

M5. RODELL answered that the corporation wll transfer the
appropriated anount, whether it 1is the anount the governor
vetoed or a new anount if the Legislature overrides that veto
She said the corporation is waiting to see what the final anount
in an appropriation bill is for transfer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what she expects the payout to be if
the Legi slature overrides the veto.

M5. RODELL replied that the dividend is calculated by the
Departnent of Revenue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if M. Rodell has told what the
anount woul d be.

M5. RODELL answered that she has no idea. She reiterated that

APFC has nothing to do with the admi nistration of the dividend.
She detailed that the corporation is finished with the dividend

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 35- July 13, 2016



once the lunp sum has been transferred. The Permanent Fund
Dividend Division within the Departnent of Revenue admnisters
who gets a dividend and how nuch.

3:58:22 PM
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked a question related to the veto.

M5. RODELL replied that the corporation |ooked at their cash
positions and was planning for a $1.4 billion transfer that was
in the original appropriation bill. The corporation was mnaking
plans for liquidity for the transfer when the governor exercised
his veto. The corporation asked Departnent of Law for guidance
as to which to look at and were told the appropriation bill. She
added as foll ows:

We | ooked to the [Office of the] Attorney GCeneral for
his guidance and we are now in a holding pattern to
see what wll happen in terns of |liquidity and
rei nvest ment opportunities.

She clarified that she spoke with Assistant Attorney General
Bill MIlks and not Attorney General Richards.

4:00: 07 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked i f t he trust ees di scussed
transferring the amount that is required under statute instead
of taking the advice fromthe Departnent of Law.

VB. RODELL answered that the trustees have not had that
conversation

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if she expects that to happen

M5. RODELL replied that there has not been a board neeting since
the governor’s veto, but she believes the board will have the
same inclination she has, which is to follow the guidance from
the Departnent of Law and their interpretation of the state |aw.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI opined that Ms. Rodell's reply gets to the
guestion of independence. He specified that the statute is very
cl ear about APFC s obligation. He continued as foll ows:

Your obligation is that you shall transfer the anount

necessary to pay the full dividend from the earnings
reserve to the dividend fund.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 36- July 13, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI suggested that it would be prudent to take
an i ndependent review of the statute.

M5. RODELL replied that Senator Welechowski's advice is duly
not ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked when the Board of Trustees neets
next .

M5. RODELL replied there will be a work session on Septenber 2.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER suggested there would be consi derabl e |egal
savings if SB 5001 were ruled out when the Legislature neets on
Friday. The benefits in the bill should be crafted as new
| egislation to benefit "the exercise and profit possibilities of
t he Per manent Fund Corporation.”

CHAI R STOLTZE said the Finance Committee will probably continue
to pursue those things.

4:04:01 PM

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked what woul d happen if APFC didn't take
the guidance from Departnment of Law and transferred the full
armount .

M5. RODELL specified that it is inportant to respect the
| egislative appropriation process and the governor's veto

process; while this is sorted out, the noney wll earn better
returns if it stays in the ERA She detailed that the dividend
account the funds earn 30-day Treasury bill cash rates.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI stated that the Departnment of Law keeps
saying that an appropriation has to occur. He explained what AS
37.13.145(b) tells APFC to do:

At the end of each fiscal year, the corporation shall
transfer fromthe ERA to the dividend fund the anount
that is necessary to pay the dividend. It says 'you
shall transfer fromthe ERA to the dividend fund.'

He said there is noney in the ERA, $8 billion, so there is
nothing to appropriate because the noney is already sitting
there. The statute clearly gives APFC guidance on what to do
regardl ess of whether the governor appropriated $1.5 billion or
$695 mllion, it does not matter, because there is still $8
billion in the ERA

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 37- July 13, 2016



M5. RODELL agreed that there are plenty of funds available for
transfer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked Ms. Rodell and the trustees to take
an i ndependent | ook because the statute is crystal clear on what
needs to happen. He asserted that the noney is there and an
appropriation is not needed.

4:07: 39 PM
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked what happens two years from now if
there is a successful |awsuit and Al askans are owed unpaid
di vi dends.

IVS. RCDELL replied, hypothetically, the corporation would
transfer funds to the dividend fund for distribution, simlar to
the second distribution that CGovernor Palin nade several years
ago. She said APFC would conply with the law and the Permanent
Fund Di vi dend Di vi si on woul d too.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER asked if the 1.4 percent includes al
expenses.

M5. RODELL replied that the 1.43 percent is the total return on
the fund for FY2016, net of all fees and expenses.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Ms. Pokon if she had further comrents.
MS. POKON answer ed no.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if SB 5001 fixes the problem that has
cone close to happening in the past, which is that there is no
dividend if the earnings reserve drops and there are
insufficient funds to pay the dividend.

4:11:28 PM

M5. POKON explained that with the new dividend formula, there
would be paid a transfer from the general fund to the dividend
fund. She said the source of the noney in the general fund would
be 20 percent of the POW transfer fromthe earnings reserve and
20 percent of royalties that go into the unrestricted genera
fund. Under SB 5001 the royalties do not go through the ERA,
whereas current procedure is for all the funds for the dividend
to transfer fromthe ERA to the dividend fund.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if naking the payout will be easier because
of the smaller dividend.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 38- July 13, 2016



M5. POKON replied that the dividend will go up if royalties and
the value of the fund go up and if they both go down it will be
t he opposite situation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there would still be noney from
royalties, as long as oil flows through the pipeline, even if no
nmoney was coming in due to a few consecutive years of a down
mar ket .

M5. POKON answered yes.

CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked t he partici pants.

[ SB 5001 was held in commttee.]

4:15: 31 PM

CHAI R STOLTZE adjourned the Senate State Affairs neeting at 4:15
p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 39- July 13, 2016



